|_\
O ©W 0O ~NO Ul WDN w N

B
N

SECOND REGULAR SESSION
HOUSE COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE FOR

HOUSE BILL NOS. 1736 & 2320

94TH GENERAL ASSEMBLY

Reported from the Special Committee on Immigration April 21, 2008 with recommendation that House Committee Substitute for
House Bill Nos. 1736 & 2320 Do Pass. Referred to the Committee on Rules pursuant to Rule 25(21)(f).

D. ADAM CRUMBLISS, Chief Clerk
4372L..07C

AN ACT

To amend chapters 67, 208, 285, and 650, RSM o, by adding thereto ten new sectionsrelating to
illegal aiens, with a penalty provision and an effective date for certain sections.

Be it enacted by the General Assembly of the state of Missouri, as follows:

Section A. Chapters 67, 208, 285, and 650, RSMo, are amended by adding thereto ten
new sections, to be known as sections 67.307, 208.009, 285.525, 285.530, 285.535, 285.540,
285.550, 285.555, 285.560, and 650.681, to read as follows:

67.307. 1. Asused in thissection, the following terms mean:

(1) " Law enforcement officer" , asheriff or peaceofficer of amunicipality with the
duty and power of arrest for violation of the general criminal laws of the state or for
violation of ordinances of municipalities;

(2) "Municipality", any county, city, town, or village;

(3 "Municipality official", any elected or appointed official or any law
enfor cement officer serving the municipality;

(4) " Sanctuary policy", any municipality's order, ordinance, or policy enacted or
followed, written or unwritten, that:

(@ Limits or prohibits any municipality official or person employed by the
municipality from communicatingor cooper atingwith federal agenciesor officialstoverify
or report theimmigration status of any alien within such municipality; or

EXPLANATION — Matter enclosed in bold-faced brackets [thus] in the above bill isnot enacted and is intended
to be omitted from the law. Matter in bold-face typein the above bill is proposed language.
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(b) Grants to illegal aliens the right to lawful presence or status within the
municipality in violation of federal immigration law.

2. No municipality shall enact or adopt any sanctuary policy. Any municipality
that enacts or adopts a sanctuary policy, written or unwritten, shall be ineligiblefor any
moneysprovided through grantsadminister ed by any stateagency or department until the
sanctuary policy isrepealed or isno longer in effect. Upon the complaint of any state
resident regarding a specific municipality of thisstateor prior totheprovision of fundsor
awarding of any grants to any municipality of this state, any member of the general
assembly may request that the attorney general of the state of Missouri issue an opinion
stating whether the municipality has a sanctuary policy, written or unwritten, in
contravention of this section.

3. Thegoverningbody, sheriff, or chief of police of each municipality shall provide
each law enfor cement officer with written notice of their duty to cooperatewith stateand
federal agencies and officials on matters pertaining to enforcement of state and federal
laws gover ning immigration.

208.009. 1. No person whoisnot acitizen or a permanent resident of the United
States or who does not possess lawful immigration status shall receive any state or local
publicbenefit, asdefined in 8 U.S.C. Section 1621(c), under thischapter, except for astate
or local public benefit that is specified under 8 U.S.C. Section 1621(b) or otherwise
mandated by federal law.

2. In addition to providing proof of other eligibility requirements, at the time of
application for any state or local public benefit, an applicant who is nineteen year s of age
or older shall provide affirmative proof that the applicant is a citizen or a permanent
resident of the United Statesor islawfully present in the United States. Such affirmative
proof shall consist of documentary evidencer ecognized by thedepar tment of revenuewhen
processing an application for a driver's license. A state or local government agency
administering state or local public benefits shall accept any identification card issued by
a state or local government agency, including a driver's license, to establish identity or
determine digibility for the state or local public benefit if the state or local gover nment
agency that issued the card has verified the éigibility of the applicant.

3. An applicant who cannot provide the proof required under this section at the
timeof application may alter natively sign an affidavit under oath, attestingtoeither United
Statescitizenship or to classification by the United Statesasan alien lawfully admitted for
permanent residence, in order toreceivetemporary benefitsor atemporary identification
document as provided in this section. The affidavit shall be on or consistent with forms
prepared by the state or local government agency administering the state or local public
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benefitsand shall includetheapplicant'sSocial Security number and an explanation of the
penaltiesunder statelaw for obtaining state or local public benefits fraudulently.

4. An applicant who has provided the sworn affidavit required under subsection
3 of thissection iseligibleto receivetemporary state or local public benefits asfollows:

(1) For ninety days or until such time that it is determined the applicant is not
lawfully present in the United States, whichever isearlier; or

(2) Indefinitely if the applicant provides a copy of a completed application for a
birth certificate that is pending in Missouri or some other state. An extension granted
under thissubsection shall terminate upon the applicant'sreceipt of abirth certificate or
adetermination that abirth certificate doesnot exist becausetheapplicant isnot a United
States citizen.

5. Any applicant whose lawful presence in the United States is not established
under thissection shall bereported tothe United StatesDepartment of Homeland Security
and the United States Department of Citizenship and Immigration Services.

6. Nothing in this section shall be deemed to require any nonpr ofit organization
organized under the Internal Revenue Codeto enforcethe provisions of this section, nor
doesit prohibit a nonprofit organization from providing aid.

285.525. 1. Asused in sections 285.525 to 285.560, the following terms shall have
the following meanings:

(1) "Businessentity", any person or group of persons performing or engagingin
any activity, enterprise, profession, or occupation for gain, benefit, advantage, or
livelihood, whether for profit or not for profit. Theterm businessentity shall include but
not be limited to self-employed individuals, partnerships, cor porations, contractors, and
subcontractors. Theterm business entity shall include any business entity that possesses
abusinessor other applicablelicense, permit, or tax certificateissued by the state or any
political subdivision ther eof, any businessentity that isexempt by law from obtaining such
a license or permit, and any business entity that is operating unlawfully without such a
license or permit. Theterm business entity shall not include a self-employed individual
with no employees,

(2) "Contractor", a person, employer, or business entity that enters into an
agreement to perform any serviceor work or to providea certain product in exchangefor
valuable consideration. This definition shall include but not be limited to a general
contractor, subcontractor, independent contractor, contract employee, project manager,
or arecruiting or staffing entity;

(3) "Division", thedivision of labor standardswithin thedepartment of labor and
industrial relations,
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(4) "Employee", any person performing or applying for work or service of any
kind or character for hirewithin the state of Missouri;

(5) "Employer", any person or entity employing or seeking to employ any person
for hirewithin the stateof Missouri, including apublicemployer. Wheretherearetwo or
mor e putative employers, any person or entity taking a business tax deduction for the
employee in question shall be considered an employer of that person for purposes of
sections 285.525 to 285.560;

(6) "Employment"”, the act of employing or state of being employed, engaged, or
hired to perform work or service of any kind or character within the state of Missouri;

(7) "Federal Work Authorization Program”, any of the electronic verification of
work authorization programs operated by the United States Department of Homeland
Security or any equivalent federal work authorization program operated by the United
States Department of Homeland Security to verify infor mation of newly hired employees,
under the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (IRCA), D.L.99-603;

(8 "lllegal alien", an alien who is not lawfully present in the United States,
according to thetermsof 8 U.S.C. 1101, et seq. The state of Missouri shall not conclude
that a person isan illegal alien unless and until an authorized representative of the state
of Missouri hasverified with thefederal gover nment that the person isan alien whoisnot
lawfully present in the United States under 8 U.S.C. 1373(c);

(9) "Political subdivision", any agency or unit of this state which now is, or
her eafter shall be, authorized to levy taxes or empower ed to cause taxesto belevied,;

(10) " Publicemployer", every department, agency, or instrumentality of the state
or political subdivision of the state;

(11) "Unauthorized alien", an alien who does not have the legal right or
authorization under federal law to work in the United States, as defined in 8 U.S.C.
1324a(h)(3);

(12) "Work", any jab, task, employment, labor, personal services, or any other
activity for which compensation isprovided, expected, or due, including but not limited to
all activities conducted by business entities.

285.530. 1. No businessentity or employer shall knowingly employ, recruit, hire
for employment, or continueto employ an illegal alien to perform work within the state of
Missouri.

2. Asacondition for theaward of any state contract or grant to a business entity,
or for any businessentity receiving a state-administered tax credit, tax abatement, or loan
fromthestate, thebusinessentity shall, by swor n affidavit and provision of documentation,
affirmitsenrollment and participation in any feder al work authorization program. Every
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businessentity shall also sign an affidavit affirmingthat it doesnot knowingly employ any
person who is an unauthorized alien.

3. All public employers shall enroll and actively participate in any federal work
authorization program.

4. If an employer enrolls and participates in any federal work authorization
program, the business entity shall retain a written or electronic copy of the dated
verification report received from the federal government. Any business entity that
participatesin such program shall have an affirmative defense that such business entity
has not violated the provisions of this section and section 285.535, unlessit is proven by
clear and convincing evidence that the business entity had actual knowledge of the
unauthorized status of the employee under the Immigration Reform and Control Act of
1986 (8 U.S.C. 1324a), or its successor .

5. A contractor will not be held liable under this section if:

(1) Thecontractor provides documented proof of enrollment in any federal work
authorization program; or

(2) The contractor executes a sworn affidavit under penalty of perjury attesting
that all the contractor's employees are lawfully present in the United States.

285.535. 1. The division shall enforce the requirements of sections 285.525 to
285.560.

2. An enfor cement action shall beinitiated by meansof awritten, signed complaint
under penalty of perjury asdefined in section 575.040, RSM o, tothedivision submitted by
any state official, business entity, or state resident. A valid complaint shall include an
allegation which describes the alleged violator as well as the actions constituting the
violation, and the date and location where such actions occurred. A complaint which
allegesaviolation solely or primarily on thebasisof national origin, ethnicity, or raceshall
be deemed invalid and shall not be enfor ced.

3. Upon receipt of avalid complaint, the division shall, within ten business days,
request identity information from the business entity regarding any personsalleged to be
unauthorized aliens. Such request shall be made by certified mail. The division shall
direct the applicable municipal or county governing body to suspend any applicable
license, permit, or exemptions of any business entity which fails, within ten business days
after receipt of therequest, to providesuch information. For purposesof sections 285.525
to 285.560, the division shall have the same power and authority as in section 290.280,
RSMo.

4. Thedivision, after recelvingtherequested identity infor mation from thebusiness
entity, shall submit identity data required by the federal government to verify, under 8
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U.S.C. 1373, theimmigration status of such persons, and shall providethe business entity
with written notice of the results of the verification request:

(1) If thefederal government notifiesthe division that an employeeisauthorized
towork in the United States, the division shall take no further action on the complaint;

(2) If the federal government notifies the division that an employee is not
authorized to work in the United States, the division shall proceed on the complaint as
provided in subsection 5 of this section;

(3) If thefederal gover nment notifiesthedivision that it isunableto verify whether
an employeeisauthorized to work in the United States, thedivision shall take no further
action on the complaint until a verification from the federal government concerning the
statusof theindividual isreceived. At no point shall any state official attempt to makean
independent deter mination of any alien'slegal statuswithout verification from thefederal
government under 8 U.S.C. 1373(c).

5. (1) If the federal government natifies the division that an employee is not
authorized to work in the United States, and the employer of the unauthorized alien
participates in any federal work authorization program, there shall be a rebuttable
presumption that theemployer hasmet therequirementsfor an affirmativedefenseunder
subsection 4 of section 285.530, and the employer shall comply with subsection 6 of this
section.

(2) If the federal government notifies the division that an employee is not
authorized towork in the United States, and the employer of the unauthorized alien does
not participatein any federal work authorization program, thedivision shall, after notice
and a hearing, determinewhether the business entity knowingly violated this section and
section 285.530:

(a) Ifthedivision findsthat a businessentity did not knowingly violatethisact, the
employer shall comply with subsection 6 of this section;

(b) If the division finds that a business entity knowingly violated this act, the
division shall direct the applicable municipal or county governing body to suspend any
applicable licenses, per mits, or exemptions of any business entity which failsto correct a
violation of thissection and section 285.530, within ten business days after notification of
theviolation by the division.

6. Thecorrection of aviolation with respect to theemployment of an unauthorized
alien shall include the following actions:

(1) (a) Thebusinessentity terminatestheunauthorized alien'semployment. If the
business entity attempts to terminate the unauthorized alien's employment and such
termination is challenged in a court of the state of Missouri, the ten business day period
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referenced in subsection 5 of this section shall betolled while the business entity pursues
the termination of the unauthorized alien's employment in such forum; or

(b) Thebusinessentity, after acquiring additional infor mation from the employee,
requestsasecondary or additional verification by thefeder al gover nment of theemployee's
authorization, under the procedures of any federal work authorization program. While
thisverification ispending, the ten businessday period referenced in subsection 5 of this
section shall betolled; and

(2) A legal representative of the businessentity submits, at an office designated by
the division, a sworn affidavit stating that the violation has ended:

(@) The affidavit shall include a description of the specific measures and actions
taken by the business entity to end theviolation, and shall includethe name, address, and
other adequate identifying information for any unauthorized aliens related to the
complaint;

(b) When two or more of the alleged unauthorized aliens were verified to be
unauthorized aliens, the legal representative of the business entity shall submit to the
division, in addition to the prescribed affidavit, documentation acceptableto the division
which confirmsthat the business entity hasenrolled in and isparticipating in any federal
work authorization program.

7. The suspension of any applicable licenses, permits, or exemptions under
subsection 5 of thissection shall terminate one businessday after alegal representative of
the business entity submits the affidavit and other documentation required under
subsection 6 of this section.

8. For a second violation of this act, the division shall direct the applicable
municipal or county governing body to suspend any applicable license, permit, or
exemptions of the business entity for a minimum of thirty days and a maximum of sixty
days. For athird violation of thisact, thedivision shall direct the applicable municipal or
county governing body to suspend any applicable license, permit, or exemptions of the
businessentity for aminimum of oneyear and amaximum of fiveyears. Thedivision shall
direct the applicable municipal or county governing body to reinstate any applicable
license, per mit, or exemptionsafter the end of the suspension period, and upon receipt by
the divison of the prescribed affidavit under subsection 6 of this section and
documentation which confirmsthat thebusinessentity hasenrolled in and isparticipating
in any federal work authorization program. The division shall forward the affidavit,
complaint, and associated documents to the Bureau of Immigration and Customs
Enforcement of the United States Department of Homeland Security.

9. In addition to the penaltiesin subsections 7 and 8 of this section:
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(1) Upon thefirst violation of thissection or section 285.530 by any businessentity
awarded a state contract or grant or recelving a state-administered tax credit, tax
abatement, or loan from thestate, thebusinessentity shall bedeemed in breach of contract
and the state shall terminate the contract and suspend or debar the business entity from
doing businesswith the state for a period of threeyears;

(2) Upon a second or subsequent violation of this act by any business entity
awarded a state contract or grant or receiving a state-administered tax credit, tax
abatement, or loan from thestate, thebusinessentity shall bedeemed in breach of contract
and the state shall terminatethe contract and per manently suspend or debar the business
entity from doing business with the state.

10. Sections 285.525 to 285.560 shall not be construed to deny any procedural
mechanismsincluded in any federal work authorization program.

11. Any businessentity subject to acomplaint and subsequent enfor cement under
thisact, or any employee of such a business entity, may challenge the enforcement of this
section with respect to such entity or employeein the courts of the state of Missouri.

12. If the division finds that any complaint is frivolous in nature or finds no
probablecausetobelievethat therehasbeen aviolation, thedivision shall dismissthecase.
For purposes of this subsection, " frivolous' shall mean a complaint clearly lacking any
basisin fact or law. Any person who submits a frivolous complaint shall be liable for
actual, compensatory, and punitivedamagesto thealleged violator for holdingthealleged
violator beforethepublicin afalselight. If thedivision findsthat a complaint isfrivolous
or that thereisnot probable causeto believe there hasbeen aviolation, the division shall
issueapublicreport tothecomplainant and thealleged violator stating with particularity
its reasons for dismissal of the complaint. Upon such issuance, the complaint and all
materials relating to the complaint shall be a public record as defined in chapter 610,
RSMo.

13. Thedetermination of whether aworker isan unauthorized alien shall bemade
by the federal gover nment, under 8 U.S.C. 1373(c). A determination of such statusof an
individual by the federal government shall create a rebuttable presumption as to that
individual's status in any judicial proceedings brought under this section and section
285.530. Thecourt may take judicial notice of any verification of an individual's status
previously provided by the federal government and may request the federal gover nment
to provide automated or testimonial verification under 8 U.S.C. 1373(c).

14. Compensation, whether in money or in kind or in services, provided to any
unauthorized alien shall not be allowed asa business expense deduction from any income
or businesstaxes of this state.
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15. Any business entity which terminates an employee in accordance with this
section shall not be liable for any claims made against the business entity under chapter
213, RSMo.

285.540. Thedivision shall promulgaterulestoimplement theprovisionsof sections
285.52510285.560. Any ruleor portion of arule, asthat term isdefined in section 536.010,
RSMo, that iscreated under the authority delegated in this section shall become effective
only if it complieswith and is subject to all of the provisions of chapter 536, RSMo, and,
if applicable, section 536.028, RSMo. This section and chapter 536, RSMo, are
nonsever ableand if any of thepower svested with thegener al assembly under chapter 536,
RSMo, to review, to delay the effective date, or to disapprove and annul a rule are
subsequently held unconstitutional, then the grant of rulemaking authority and any rule
proposed or adopted after August 28, 2008, shall be invalid and void.

285.550. If any municipal or county gover ning body failsto suspend any applicable
licenses, permits, or exemptions as directed by the division as a result of a violation of
section 285.535, the municipality shall be deemed to have adopted a sanctuary policy as
defined in section 67.307, RSMo, and shall be subject to the penalties thereunder.

285.555. Should the federal government discontinue or fail to authorize or
implement any federal wor k authorization program, the gener al assembly shall review the
sections of this act for the purpose of determining whether the sections are no longer
applicable and should berepealed.

285.560. The state shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless any political
subdivision, public official, or employee who is sued for violation of federal civil rights
statutes when attempting to comply with the sections of this act.

650.681. 1. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, no gover nment entity,
political subdivision, or gover nment official within the state of Missouri shall prohibit, or
in any way restrict, any gover nment entity or official from communicating or cooper ating
with the United States Bureau of Immigration and Customs Enforcement regarding the
citizenship or immigration status, lawful or unlawful, of any individual.

2. Notwithstandingany other provision of law, no person or agency within thestate
of Missouri shall prohibit, or in any way restrict, a public employeefrom doing any of the
followingwith respect toinfor mation regar dingtheimmigration status, lawful or unlawful,
of any individual:

(1) Sendingsuchinformation to, or requestingor receiving such infor mation from,
the United States Bureau of Immigration and Customs Enfor cement;

(2) Maintaining such information;
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(3) Exchanging such infor mation with any other federal, state, or local gover nment
entity;

(4) Askingan individual hisor her citizenship or immigration status.

3. Upon thecomplaint of any stateresident regar ding aspecific gover nment entity,
agency, or political subdivision of thisstateor prior totheprovision of fundsor awarding
of any grants to a government entity, agency, or political subdivision of this state, any
member of the general assembly may request that the attorney general of the state of
Missouri issue an opinion stating whether the government entity, agency, or poalitical
subdivision has current policies, written or unwritten, in contravention of subsections 1
and 2 of thissection.

4. Nostateagency or department shall provideany fundingor award any monetary
grants to any government entity, agency, or political subdivision determined under
subsection 3 of this section to have a policy in contravention of subsections 1 and 2 of this
section until the policy isrepealed or no longer in effect.

Section B. The provisions of sections 67.307, 285.525, 285.530, 285.535, 285.540,
285.550, 285.555, 285.560, and 650.681 of section A of this act shall take effect on January 1,
2009.
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